LHC Joint Committee Constitution - draft

This Constitution had been approved by each of the Authorities as the Constitution of the Joint Committee.

1. Establishment of the Joint Committee

- 1.1 The Joint Committee shall be the "LHC Joint Committee"
- 1.2 The Joint Committee is established under Section 101(5) of the Local Government Act 1972, as applied by Section 20 of the Local Government Act 2000 and Regulation 11 of the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) Regulations 2000 by the Executives of each of the Councils
- 1.3 The Joint Committee shall comprise one member from each of the Authorities. Each Authority's representative on the Joint Committee shall be appointed by [insert whoever in the council constitution has power to make the appointment]
- 1.4 A member of the Joint Committee shall cease to be a member of the Joint Committee, and a vacancy shall automatically arise, where the member ceases to be, or is suspended under Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 from acting as:
 - (a) Leader of an appointing Authority,
 - (b) a member of the Executive of the appointing Authority; or
 - (c) a member of the Appointing Authority
- 1.5 Upon being made aware of any member ceasing to be a member of the Joint Committee, the Secretary of the Joint Committee shall write to that member confirming that he/she has ceased to be a member of the Joint Committee, and notify the appointing Authority and the other members of the Joint Committee accordingly.

2. Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Joint Committee

- 2.1 At the first meeting of the Joint Committee and thereafter at the first meeting of the Joint Committee after the 1st May in any year, the Joint Committee shall elect a Chairman of the Joint Committee and a Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee for the following year from among the members of the Joint Committee.
- 2.2 Where a member of one appointing Authority is elected as the Chairman of the Joint Committee, the Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee shall be elected from among the members of the Joint Committee who are members of the other Authorities.
- 2.3 The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee shall each hold office until:
 - 2.3.1 A new Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee is elected in accordance with Paragraph 2.1 above,

- 2.3.2 He/she ceases to be a member of the Joint Committee, or
- 2.3.3 He/she resigns from the office of Chairman or Vice Chairman by notification in writing to the Secretary of the Joint Committee.
- 2.4 Where a casual vacancy arises in the office of Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee, the Joint Committee shall at its next meeting elect a Chairman or Vice Chairman, as the case may be, for the balance of the term of office of the previous Chairman or Vice Chairman.
- 2.5 Where, at any meeting or part of a meeting of the Joint Committee, both the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee are either absent or unable to act as Chairman or Vice Chairman, the Joint Committee shall elect one of the members of the Joint Committee present at the meeting to preside for the balance of that meeting or part of the meeting, as appropriate.

3. Secretary to the Joint Committee

- 3.1 The Joint Committee shall be supported by the Secretary to the Joint Committee.
- 3.2 The Secretary of the Joint Committee shall be an officer of one of the Authorities, appointed by the Joint Committee for this purpose.
- 3.3 The functions of the Secretary of the Joint Committee shall be:
 - To maintain a record of membership of the Joint Committee;
 - To notify the proper officers of each Authority of any anticipated "key decisions" to be taken by the Joint Committee, to enable such "key decisions" to be included in Forward Plans of each appointing Authority;
 - To carry out such notification to and consultation with members of any appointing Authority as may be necessary to enable the Joint Committee to take urgent "key decisions" which have not been included in the Forward Plans of the Authorities;
 - To summon meetings of the Joint Committee in accordance with Paragraph 4 below:
 - To prepare and send out the agenda for meetings of the Joint Committee in consultation with the Chairman and the Vice Chairman of the Committee and the [Director];
 - To keep a record of the proceedings of the Joint Committee;
 - To take such administrative action as may be necessary to give effect to decisions of the Joint Committee:
 - Such other functions as may be determined by the Joint Committee.

4. **Convening of Meetings of the Joint Committee**

- 4.1 Meetings of the Joint Committee shall be held at such times, dates and places as may be notified to the members of the Joint Committee by the Secretary to the Joint Committee, being such time, place and location as:
 - 4.1.1 the Joint Committee shall from time to time resolve;
 - 4.1.2 the Chairman of the Joint Committee, or if he/she is unable to act, the Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee, shall notify to the Secretary of the Joint Committee, or
 - 4.1.3 The Secretary of the Joint Committee, in consultation where practicable with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee, shall determine in response to receipt of a request in writing addressed to the Secretary of the Joint Committee:
 - from and signed by two members of the Joint Committee, or (a)
 - (b) from the Chief Executive of any of the Authorities.

which request sets out an urgent item of business within the functions of the Joint Committee.

- 4.2 The Secretary of the Joint Committee shall settle the agenda for any meeting of the Joint Committee after consulting, where practicable:
 - 4.2.1 The Chairman of the Joint Committee:
 - 4.2.2 The Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee;

and shall incorporate in the agenda any items of business and any reports submitted by:

- (a) The Chief Executive of any of the Authorities;
- the Chief Finance Officer¹ to any of the Authorities; (b)
- the Monitoring Officer to any of the Authorities; (c)
- the Legal Advise²r to the Joint Committee; (d)
- the Director of the LHC Operations Group (e)

¹ Equivalent to your honorary treasurer ² Equivalent to your honorary clerk

(f) any two members of the Joint Committee in accordance with Paragraph 8.1.3 below.

5. Procedure at Meetings of the Joint Committee

- 5.1 The Joint Committee shall, unless the member of the Joint Committee presiding at a meeting or the Joint Committee determines otherwise, conduct its business in accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules set out in Appendix One to this Constitution
- The Chairman of the Joint Committee, or in his/her absence the Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee, or in his/her absence the member of the Joint Committee elected for this purpose, shall preside at any meeting of the Joint Committee.

6. Powers Delegated to the Joint Committee

- 6.1 The Joint Committee shall act as a co-ordinating forum for LHC, providing guidance to the Operations Group. Its executive decision-making powers shall be limited to the following
 - 6.1.1 identification of the overall strategic objectives of the LHC;
 - 6.1.2 management of the LHC
 - 6.1.3 overseeing and monitoring the work of the Operations Group;
 - 6.1.4 setting the staffing structure of the LHC
 - 6.1.5 overseeing the procurement of framework agreements on behalf of the Authorities
 - 6.1.6 overseeing the provision of technical advice and consultancy services provided by the LHC Operations Group.

insert other delegations agreed by the councils

- 6.2 Without prejudice to Paragraph 6.1 above, it is hereby declared that the following functions are reserved to each of the Authorities and shall not be within the powers of the Joint Committee:
 - 6.2.1 All non-executive functions of any of the Authorities, or functions which would be non-executive functions if the Authority were operating Executive Arrangements in accordance with the Local Government Act 2000;
 - Any decision which is contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Budget approved by each Authority for the Joint Committee, or is contrary to an approved policy or strategy of any of the Authorities;
 - 6.2.3 Any decision in respect of which the Chief Executive of any of the Authorities has notified the Secretary to the Joint Committee in writing of the Authority's formal objection to the proposed decision prior to the start of the meeting at which it is proposed that the decision be taken.

7. Attendance at Meetings of the Joint Committee

7.1 Notwithstanding that a meeting or part of a meeting of the Joint Committee is not open to the press and public, the officers specified in Paragraph 7.2 below of each of the Authorities shall be entitled to attend all, and all parts, of such meetings, unless the

particular officer has a conflict of interest as a result of a personal interest in the matter under consideration.

- 7.2 The following are the officers who shall have a right of attendance in accordance with Paragraph 9.1:
 - 7.2.1 the Chief Executive of any of the Authorities;
 - 7.2.2 the Chief Finance Officer to any of the Authorities;
 - 7.2.3 the Monitoring Officer to any of the Authorities;
 - 7.2.4 the Director of the LHC Operations Group

8. Financial Regulations and Officer Employment Procedure Rules

The Joint Committee shall operate under the Financial Regulations and Officer Employment Procedure Rules of London Borough of Hillingdon

9. Amendment of this Constitution

This Constitution can only be amended by resolution of each of the Authorities.

10. LHC Operations Group

- 10.1 The LHC Operations Group shall be employed by the London Borough of Hillingdon and the terms and conditions of staff within the LHC Operations Group shall be those used by London Borough of Hillingdon.
- 10.2 Notwithstanding that the London Borough of Hillingdon shall be the employer of the staff, the Joint Committee shall determine the structure of the staffing group from time to time to ensure that the LHC can carry out its role efficiently and effectively.
- 10.3 The Director shall report to the Joint Committee on all activity relating to the work of the Operations Group at least annually.
- 10.4 The Authorities shall equally be responsible for the staff of the LHC in circumstances where either the Joint Committee or the LHC cease to exist and shall cooperate with each other with a view to finding continued employment for the staff with one of the Authorities or by sharing equally and redundancy costs.

11. Budget

An annual budget showing forecasts and estimates for income and expenditure for the following two years shall be presented for approval by the Joint Committee annually

12. Premises

12.1 Any premises relating to the work of the LHC Joint Committee must be owned or leased by one of the Authorities.

12.2 Premises currently occupied by the LHC Operations Group are leased by the London Borough of Hillingdon

13. Interpretation

In this Constitution the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings"

"Authority" means each of [insert full list of participating councils] and "Authorities" shall mean all of these Authorities.

"Council" means each [as above] and "Councils" shall mean all of these Councils.

"Director" means the officer of the London Borough of Hillingdon who acts as Director of the LHC Operations Group

"The Joint Committee" means the [insert list of members] LHC Joint Committee.

"LHC" means the consortium which exists to provide specialist technical and procurement services to building programmes undertaken by participating local authorities and other public sector bodies and provides framework arrangements for such procurement services to such bodies

"The LHC Operations Group" means such team of officers from the Authorities, as the Authorities shall establish to manage LHC under the guidance of the Joint Committee.

"The Secretary to the Joint Committee" means the officer of one of the Authorities appointed for the time being by the Joint Committee to perform this function.

Joint Committee Executive Decision Procedure Rules

Example – usually use those of one of the authorities in the JC – but will cover the same kind of rules many of which are required by the legislation governing local authorities

1 Application

These procedure rules apply to all meetings of the Joint Committee., any Sub-Committee of the Joint Committee, and to decisions of individual Joint Committee Members and executive decisions taken by officers under powers delegated from the Joint Committee.

2 Allocation and Delegation of Functions

(a) Sub-delegation

Except in respect of Key Decisions, where the Joint Committee or a Sub-Committee of the Joint Committee is responsible for the discharge of a function, it may arrange for the discharge of that function by a Sub-Committee of the Joint Committee or by an officer

(b) Resumption of delegated functions

Where a function has been delegated by the Joint Committee or a Sub-Committee of the Joint Committee, it may at any time resume responsibility for the discharge of that function by notice in writing to the person or body to whom the function has been delegated, with a copy to the Secretary to the Joint Committee.

Where a Sub-Committee of the Joint Committee or officer has been given delegated powers in respect of a function, he/she may at any time refer the matter up for decision to the person or body from whom the power has been delegated.

3 Meetings

- (a) The Joint Committee shall meet as necessary for the effective discharge of its functions. Any Sub-Committees shall meet as necessary to discharge of their functions
- (b) The Joint Committee shall meet at such time, date and location as may be determined by the Joint Committee or by the Chair of the Joint Committee and notified to the Secretary to the Joint Committee. Meetings of Sub-Committees shall be on such time, date and location as the Sub-Committee may determine and notify to the Secretary to the Joint Committee.
- (c) Where the Scrutiny Committee of one of the Authorities has requested the Joint Committee or a Sub-Committee to reconsider a decision, the decision-taker(s) shall meet and reconsider the decision within 20 working days of the decision of the Scrutiny Committee.

4 Summons and Agenda Procedure

- (a) All meetings of Joint Committee and Sub-Committees shall be summoned by the Secretary to the Joint Committee.
- (b) Except in cases of special urgency, at least 5 clear days before the meeting, the Secretary to the Joint Committee shall prepare and send to each member an agenda setting out:
 - A The identity of the body
 - B The time, date and location of the meeting
 - C The business to be transacted at the meeting, including:

- Any reports and recommendations from any of the Authorities
- II Any reports or recommendations from the Joint Committee, a Sub-Committee
- III Any notices of motion to, or referred to, the Joint Committee
- IV Any petitions to, or referred to, the Joint Committee
- V Any reports to be made by statutory officers of any of the Authorities
- VI Any matters which the Chair has notified to the Secretary to the Joint Committee for inclusion in the agenda
- VII Any reports to be made by the Project Director or other officers of any of the Authorities appropriate to the proper discharge of the body's business.
- VIII Consideration of the Joint Committee's work programme
- IX Where practicable, an indication that the Secretary to the Joint Committee is of the opinion that it is likely that the press and public will be excluded from all or part of the meeting.
- (c) No business may be transacted at a meeting which is not specified in the agenda or supplementary agenda for the meeting unless the Chair of the Joint Committee or Sub-Committee agrees that the item should be considered as a matter of urgency. The reason for the urgency shall be specified in the statement of decision.
- (d) The agenda shall be accompanied by any reports and documents necessary for the decision-taker(s) to discharge his/her business effectively. Each such report shall be in such standard form as the Secretary to the Joint Committee may prescribe and shall include a list of all background documents which the author of the report has relied upon in compiling the report. As a matter of principle, any written report relating to a matter included in the agenda should be made available and circulated at the same time as the agenda, but where this is not practicable because of the urgent nature of the matter, the agenda will state that the report is to follow and the report will be circulated as soon as possible after the circulation of the agenda for the meeting.

5 Rights of Attendance and Audience

- (a) Agendas of the Joint Committee and of any Sub-Committee meetings and reports, except those marked "Not for Publication", will be available for inspection on request by the public at the offices of the constituent Authorities during normal office hours.
- (b) The presumption is that all meetings of the Joint Committee and of any Sub- Committees shall be open to the public.
 - (i) Where the Secretary to the Joint Committee is of the opinion that it is likely that the press and public will be excluded from all or part of a meeting, he/she shall so indicate on the agenda and may withhold from the press and public any report or background paper which would disclose confidential or exempt information.
 - (ii) The Joint Committee and any Sub-Committee must exclude press and public from any part of a meeting at which confidential information is likely to be disclosed
 - (iii) The Joint Committee and any Sub-Committee may exclude press and public from any part of a meeting:
 - A at which exempt information is likely to be disclosed; or
 - B at which officers will provide a briefing to members on a matter on which a decision is likely to be taken on the matter within the next 28 days;
- (d) Where the Joint Committee or a Sub-Committee excludes press and public from a meeting, all members of the constituent authorities who are not members of the Joint Committee or Sub-Committee, as appropriate, shall leave the meeting unless specifically invited to remain.
- (e) All documents which are open to public inspection, will normally be available at least five

clear days before the relevant meeting. Where a report is not available when the agenda is published, the report shall be made available for public inspection when it is made available to members of the authority.

- (f) Any Member (of any of the constituent authorities) may:
 - (i) Provide the Secretary to the Joint Committee, before the day on which the meeting is to be held, with representations in writing in respect of any matter on such an agenda, in which case the Secretary to the Joint Committee shall ensure that such representations are provided to the decision-taker(s);
 - (ii) Attend the meeting and address the decision-taker for up to 5 minutes in respect of the matter to be decided.
- (g) Members of the public may submit to the Secretary to the Joint Committee comments in writing about any matter on an agenda for a meeting before the day on which the meeting is to be held. Where practicable, such comments will be reported to the decision-taker(s)

6 Urgent Decisions

(a) Urgent Key Decisions

Subject as below, the Joint Committee and any Sub-Committee shall not take a Key decision which has not been included in the Forward Plan for the period in which the decision is to be taken unless at least 5 clear days' notice of that decision has been given to the Chairman of Scrutiny Committee of each Authority setting out the reasons for urgency

(b) Special Urgent Key Decisions

The Joint Committee or a Sub-Committee shall not take a Special Urgent Key Decision unless notice of the intended decision has been given by the Secretary to the Joint Committee to the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee of each Authority and he/she, or in his absence the Chairman of Council, or in his/her absence the Vice-Chairman of Council, has notified the Secretary to the Joint Committee that he/she agrees that the decision is specially urgent.

(c) Reporting Urgent and Special Urgent Key Decisions

The Secretary to the Joint Committee shall ensure that a report listing all Urgent Key Decisions and Special Urgent Key Decisions is presented to the next convenient meeting of the Scrutiny Committee of each constituent authority

7 Departure Decisions

- (a) The Joint Committee and any Sub-Committee shall not take a decision which is contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the relevant Authority's approved Budget or the Authority's approved plan or strategy for borrowing and capital expenditure, and which is not within the approved virement limits, but shall refer the proposed decision to appropriate Authority for determination
- (b) The Joint Committee and any Sub-Committee shall not take a decision which is contrary to an Authority's Policy Framework, but shall refer the proposed decision to the relevant Authority for determination
- (c) Paragraphs (a) and (b) shall not apply where the decision -
 - (i) is urgent (in the sense that the interests of the authority, its area or the inhabitants of the area are at risk of suffering unacceptable damage if the decision were to be deferred until the next ordinary meeting of Council) and

- (ii) the Secretary to the Joint Committee has notified the Chairman of Scrutiny Committee of the relevant Authority or, if he/she is unable to act, the Chairman of Council or, if he/she is unable to act, the Vice-Chairman of Council of the intended decision and the reasons for urgency and that Councillor has notified the Secretary to the Joint Committee in writing that he/she agrees that the matter needs to be determined as a matter of urgency.
- (d) In each instance where an urgent decision is taken under Paragraph (c) above, the decision taker(s) shall as soon as reasonably practicable after the making of the decision, submit a report to each relevant Authority setting out the particulars of:
 - (i) the decision which has been taken
 - (ii) the reasons why the decision was urgent, and
 - (iii) the reasons for the decision itself.
- (e) The Secretary to the Joint Committee shall ensure that a report setting out each urgent departure decision is presented to the next convenient meeting of the relevant Scrutiny Committee.

8 Rules of Procedure

(a) Who presides?

The Chairman shall preside at meetings of the Joint Committee. In his/her absence, the Deputy Chairman shall preside. In the absence of both Chairman and Deputy Chairman, the meeting shall elect a member of the Joint Committee to preside for the duration of the meeting.

Each Sub-Committee shall elect a Chairman. In his/her absence, the Committee shall elect a member to preside for the duration of the meeting.

(b) What business is to be transacted?

At each meeting of the Joint Committee the following business will be transacted:

- (i) Apologies for absence
- (ii) Declarations of interest
- (iii) Matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting
- (iv) Matters set out in the agenda for the meeting.
- (c) The person presiding at a meeting shall conduct the meeting in accordance with these Procedure Rules.
- (d) The person presiding at the meeting may vary the order of business at the meeting.
- (e) The person presiding at the meeting may invite any person, whether a member or officer of the Joint Committee or a third party, to attend the meeting and to speak on any matter before the meeting.

9 Quorum

The quorum for a meeting of the Joint Committee or a Sub-Committee shall be three members.

10 Record of Attendance

All Joint Committee Members and Sub-Committee members present during the whole or part of a meeting must sign their names on the attendance sheet before the conclusion of the meeting.

11 Disorderly Conduct

- (a) If, in the opinion of the person presiding, any member of the Joint Committee or of a Sub-Committee misbehaves at a meeting by persistently disregarding the ruling of the person presiding, or by behaving irregularly, improperly or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the business of the Joint Committee or a Sub-Committee, the person presiding may move not to hear the member further. If the motion is seconded it shall be put to the vote without discussion.
- (b) If, in the opinion of the person presiding, the member persistently misbehaves after such a motion has been carried, the person presiding may require the removal of the member for such period as the person presiding shall determine. The person presiding may if necessary adjourn or suspend the sitting of the Joint Committee or Sub-Committee.
- (c) If a member is required to leave a meeting under this Procedure Rule, the member is not entitled to vote during the period of exclusion.
- (d) If a member of the public or Councillor who is not a Joint Committee or Sub-Committee Member interrupts the proceedings at any meeting, the person presiding may issue a warning. If the interruption continues the person presiding may order the person's removal from the room or chamber in which the meeting is being held.
- (e) In case of general disturbance in any part of the chamber open to the public the person presiding may order that part cleared. If the person presiding considers it necessary, he may adjourn or suspend the sitting of the Joint Committee or Sub-Committee.

12 Voting

- (a) Whilst the Joint Committee shall seek to operate by consensus, matters under consideration shall be determined by a majority vote of those members present and voting
- (b) Voting is generally by a show of hands.
- (c) Any Joint Committee or Sub-Committee Member may ask for a vote to be recorded, individual votes will then be taken by way of a roll call and recorded in the minutes so as to show how each member present and voting gave his vote.
- (d) Any Joint Committee or Sub-Committee Member may ask that his/her individual vote be recorded in the minutes.
- (e) Whenever a vote is taken by show of hands and not by roll call, the person presiding shall ask for those in favour, and those against to vote in turn. He will then ask those abstaining from voting to indicate accordingly. Any member may ask for the number of those in favour, the number of those against and the number of those abstaining to be recorded in the minutes.
- (f) A member may not change his/her vote once he/she has cast it and another member has been called upon to vote.
- (g) If a member arrives before the casting of votes has been commenced he/she is entitled to vote.
- (h) Immediately after a vote is taken any member may ask for it to be recorded in the minutes that he/she voted for or against the question, or that he/she abstained.
- (i) A matter shall be considered to be approved if it receives the votes of a majority of those members entitled to vote who are present and voting. In the event that the votes cast for and against a proposal are equal, the person presiding, will have a second and/or casting

vote where. There shall be no restriction on the manner in which the casting vote is exercised.

(j) Where there are more than two persons nominated for any position to be filled by the Joint Committee or a Sub-Committee, and no person receives more than one half of the votes given, the name of the person having the least number of votes will be struck off the list and a fresh vote taken, and so on until a clear majority of votes is given in favour of one person.

13 Recording the Decision

- (a) Joint Committee and Sub-Committees
 - (i) The person presiding shall be responsible for ensuring that the Secretary to the Joint Committee is clear as to the decision taken and the reasons for that decision.
 - (ii) The Secretary to the Joint Committee shall then, as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the meeting, prepare a statement of the decisions taken at the meeting, including:
 - A The Joint Committee and Sub-Committee and other members of the Authorities attending the meeting
 - B Any disclosures of personal or prejudicial interests
 - C The decisions taken
 - D Whether the decision is urgent and should be implemented directly
 - E A summary of the reasons for the decision
 - F The options which were considered at, but rejected by, the meeting

The Secretary to the Joint Committee may consult the person presiding at the meeting as to the matters to be recorded in the minute.

- (c) Where the statement of decision(s) would disclose confidential or exempt information, the Secretary to the Joint Committee shall produce a formal statement of decisions of the meeting and a summary of the decisions taken at the meeting excluding such confidential and exempt information but providing a coherent account of the matters decided.
- (d) Where the decision is a decision upon a reconsideration of a decision on a "Call-In" by a Scrutiny Committee, the Secretary to the Joint Committee shall be responsible for reporting that reconsideration decision to the Scrutiny Committee
- (e) The Secretary to the Joint Committee shall be responsible for circulating the statement of decisions to officers of the authority responsible for the implementation of the decision(s).

14 Implementing decisions

- (a) Key decisions shall not be implemented until 5 clear days from the publication of the statement of decision(s) of the meeting or the decision.
- (b) Paragraph (a) shall not apply where the author of any report has stated therein, or the decision-taker(s) have determined, that the matter is urgent and that the interests of one or more of the constituent authorities, its area or the inhabitants of the area are at risk of suffering unacceptable damage if the decision were not to be implemented directly.
- (c) Where a non-urgent (Key or Non-Key) decision is called in by a Scrutiny Committee before it is implemented, implementation of the decision will be deferred until the decision-taker has had the opportunity to consider any request from the Scrutiny Committee for the re-consideration of the matter.